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HISTORICAL SKETCH

A sketch of the Methodist Church of Seventy Four Years Ago in the South Fork Valley.

(By Col. G. M. Yoder)

About the years of 1833 or 1834 there appeared two ministers in the South Fork Valley, calling themselves Methodist preachers. Their names were Samuel Lauder from the town of Lincolnton and a Rev. Gamewell, we are unable to tell where he came from, but are of the opinion he came from South Carolina, as in those days all the circuit preachers came from that Stated to supply these circuits. When their first preachers came they had no place to hold worship, as in those days there was only one church in this valley, and that was Grace Union Church.  And hence they appointed regular preaching station at the house of John Scots, who then lived on the farm known as the Wash Ramsour place, now the farm of W. M. Huffman.  Their mode and manner of revival worship was something new to these Pennsylvania Dutch. It created a curiosity among them as they never had heard of such a thing.


It aroused these old mothers curiosity that she gather all of her children from various sections of the country to come in and see this new denomination holding these revival meetings. We used to attend them in our boyhood days. They opened the door of the church as they called it and soon got some followers. They made roads into the German Reformed Church at the time that Rev. Fritchy was their pastor and Sheppard and took some of his members, which he did not like. It hurt his feelings to see some of his members leave the congregation and follow this new order of things, and he called them Gougers because they had gouged with his congregation. They and their local preachers were known by that name for many years. We know on one occasion when grandfather John Yoder was paralized that the Rev. Fritchy came over one night and sit up with him. David Whitener was also there and had a white fur hat, and Rev. Fritchy put it on and walked through the house and then said he would have bought one long ago but if he did they would have called him a Methodist preacher as they all wore white fur hats. So they were known by the white fur hats. It was very strange after he had denounced them as Gougers in less than twelve months he had preaching at George P. Shufords and had a big revival, which thing was not known among the Pennsylvania Dutch German Reformed and it aroused some of those old Dutch especially my old grandfather, who then was an Elder at Grace Church. He spared no time in tracing up the whole matter. He went to Rev Graver, a Lutheran minister, and told him not to affiliate with Rev. Fritchy in that revival movement as it was contrary to the doctrine, faith, and practice of the German Reformed Church. He also took up Fritchy about the matter and gave him a lecture about it and told him that he had violated the rules, customs, faith and practice of the German Reformed Church.  He recounted and never any more practiced that new mode of preaching in his congregation.

Now back to the Methodist preachers. When they had organized a small congregation then they bought about seven acres of land from Berry Abernethy, where the present Wesley Chapel Church now stands. This was about the year 1835, perhaps 1834. Then this small congregation which was drawn from the German Reformed Church and a few Lutherans, went to work and got the material to build a church, which was an ordinary log house about 10 by 20.  After the wall was up and covered the cracks were nailed shut about half way up. It had no windows, simply one doubledoor. It stood in this condition a long time. Then in years afterwards they sawed out the front part of the wall and added a frame to the building about ten feet, to accommodate the negroes who then were member of the congregation. Then we think they also weatherboarded it and cut out windows. Then their old church stood for a number of years until the present church was built and the old church was sold and Wash Ramsour bought it and made a gin house of it. Moses Abernethy is the only member of the present congregation that was born before the first church was built. The first person buried at this church was John Dellinger, in the fall of 1836. We were present at his burial; being ten years old. Then this congregation wanted a camp ground which was established about 1839. About a mile and half west of the Wesley Chapel Church near David Warlick's old mill on his home. As a campmeeting was a new order of the day in this section of the country, the people began to erect tents and a brush arbor was built. We attended the first campmeeting ever held in the Western part of the country, which now is 70 years ago, and also attended every campmeeting. In about 1845 or 1846, it was moved to Wesleys Chapel Church and continued there for a number of years. After the war the campmeeting system was abolished as the tents and arbor had gone down through the civil war and the arbor was sold. G. L. Shuford bought it and made a barn of it. Then three years ago the congregation thought that they ought to have a campmeeting again, and it was reinstalled. An arbor and tents were built.
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